ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE JUDI CI ARY STANDI NG COW TTEE
January 31, 2007
1:33 p. m

MEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Hollis French, Chair
Senator Charlie Huggins
Senator Bill W el echowski
Senator Lesil MQiire
Senat or Gene Therri aul t
MEMBERS ABSENT

Al'l nmenbers present

COWMM TTEE CALENDAR

Confirmati on Hearings

Select Commttee on Legislative Ethics

Ann Rabinowitz - Anchorage
H. Conner Thomas - None
Gary J. Turner — Sol dotna

CONFI RVATI ONS ADVANCED

SENATE BILL NO 5
"An Act relating to reporting of certain crines."

HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SB 5

SHORT TI TLE: FAI LURE TO REPORT CRI MES
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) MOGUI RE

01/ 16/ 07 (S) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 5/ 07

01/ 16/ 07 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 16/ 07 (S) JUD, FIN

01/ 24/ 07 (S) JUD AT 1:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
01/ 24/ 07 (S) Heard & Hel d

01/ 24/ 07 (S) M NUTE( JUD)

01/ 31/ 07 (S) JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 211

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -1- January 31,

2007



W TNESS REG STER

Ann Rabi nowi tz, Appointee

to the Select Commttee on Legislative Ethics

Anchor age, AK

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified as appointee to the Select
Conmittee on Legislative Ethics

H. Conner Thonas, Appoi ntee

to the Select Commttee on Legislative Ethics

Norme, AK

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified as appointee to the Select
Comm ttee on Legislative Ethics

Gary J. Turner, Appointee

to the Select Commttee on Legislative Ethics

Sol dot na, AK

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified as appointee to the Select
Comm ttee on Legislative Ethics

THERESA OBERMEYER

No address provided

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the appointnment hearings
to the Select Commttee on Legislative Ethics

Ri ck Svobodny, Chief Assistant Attorney Ceneral

Crimnal D vision

Departnent of Law

PO Box 110300

Juneau, AK 99811-0300

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Descri bed problens that SB 5 would present
for prosecutors

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAIR HOLLIS FRENCH <called the Senate Judiciary Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 1:33:16 PM Present at the call to
order were Senators Lesil MGQuire, Bill Welechowski, Charlie
Huggins, and Chair Hollis French. Senator Gene Therriault
arrived shortly thereafter.

CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NE S)
Select Conmttee on Ethics Legislative

CHAI R FRENCH announced that the commttee would hear from the
appointees to the Select Committee on Legislative Ethics. He

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 2- January 31, 2007



thanked Ms. Rabinowitz for her past service and asked her to
state why she would like to continue to serve.

1:33: 35 PM
Senator Therriault joined the neeting.

ANN RABI NOW TZ, Appointee to the Select Commttee on Legislative
Ethics, relayed that she learned a great deal during her first
three-year term She believes she could make a contribution this
sessi on.

SENATOR McGUI RE nade a notion to advance the nane Ann Rabi nowitz
as appointee to the Select Commttee on Legislative Ethics to
the full body for consideration.

CHAI R FRENCH announced that forwarding the nane does not reflect
the intent by any nenber to vote for or against the individua
during any further sessions. There being no objection, the
confirmation was advanced from the Senate Judiciary Standing
Comm ttee.

At ease from 1l:35:55 PMto 1:36:52 PM

CHAI R FRENCH thanked H. Conner Thomas for his past service on
the Select Committee on Legislative Ethics. He asked him to
articulate why he would like to continue to serve.

H. CONNER  THOVAS, Appointee to the Select Commttee on
Legislative Ethics, said he has been practicing law in None in
vari ous capacities since 1978. He has been in private practice
since 1986 and has served on the ethics conmttee since 1999. He
has enjoyed performng this worthwhile public service and the
wor kl oad has not been burdensone. Based on the experience he has
had he |ooks forward to providing relevant coments regarding
upcom ng ethics | egislation.

SENATOR McGUI RE asked if his contract with the Ofice of Public
Advocacy, Departnent of Administration is renewed on an annua
basi s.

MR. THOVAS said the three-year contract has a renewal provision.
SENATOR McGUI RE said she could see a potential conflict through
t he budget process. She asked if he mght maintain a bias if a

| awmmeker nmade a decision that inpacted his contract and
subsequently canme before himon an ethics issue.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 3- January 31, 2007



MR. THOVAS said he didn't think it would be a conflict. He'd
like to believe that if he felt that he couldn’'t be inpartial,
then he wouldn’t continue to sit on the particul ar issue.

SENATOR McCGUI RE asked if he would recuse hinself or sinply state
the potential conflict on the record if a |awmker who oversaw
his contract were to cone before him

MR. THOVAS replied he isn't sure he would consider that a
conflict in and of itself, but if he was aware of a potentia
conflict he wuld state it on the record. He woul dn’t
necessarily know the conposition of a budget sub-conmmittee
unl ess the issue before the committee related to his contract.
In general he has observed that when people have a conflict it’s
stated on the record and they don't participate. It'’s a little
different than the | egislative process.

CHAIR FRENCH asked if his ~contract would be separately
identifiable or if it would fall under a general |egal services
classification in the DOA budget.

MR THOVAS said he isn't sure.

CHAIR FRENCH noted that a |awraker could be aware of the
potential for bias in the instance that Senator MQ@iire posed
even if the ethics conmttee nenber is not. Wth that in mnd he
asked if there is a nethod for a person who is charged with an
ethical violation to bring a challenge to a sitting nenber of
the conmitt ee.

MR. THOVAS replied he’s not aware of a formal nethod for a
chall enge. When a conplaint is filed, the subject is given
notice and asked to respond. That would be the tine for the
subject to raise the issue of a potential conflict, he said.

CHAIR FRENCH commented that there is no recusal npotion |ike
there is for a judge.

MR. THOVAS agr eed.

1:45: 33 PM

SENATOR MGUIRE clarified that she brought up the issue because
there is a reason that state contracts are included in the
di scl osure | aws. She noted that they apply to | awrakers as well.
She enphasi zed that her questions weren’'t neant to be negative.
She sinply thought it was appropriate to get his response on the
record.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -4- January 31, 2007



MR. THOVAS replied it’s a legitimate area of inquiry.

SENATOR HUGA NS raised the question of prerequisites. Only one
public nmenber can be a former legislator and no nore than two
public nenbers can be registered with the same political party.

CHAIR FRENCH asked M. Thomas if he is registered wth a
political party.

MR. THOVAS replied he is a regi stered Denocrat.

CHAI R FRENCH commented he is famliar with the rule and he woul d
ask the next nenber about his political affiliation.

1:47: 40 PM

SENATOR McGUIRE nmade a notion to advance the nanme H. Conner
Thomas as appointee to the Select Committee on Legislative
Ethics to the full body for consideration.

CHAI R FRENCH announced that forwarding the nane does not reflect
the intent by any nenber to vote for or against the individua
during any further sessions. There being no objection, the
confirmati on was advanced from the Senate Judiciary Standing
Conmi ttee.

At ease from 1:48:13 PMtol: 49: 02 PM

CHAIR FRENCH announced that Gary J. Turner was up for
consideration as a nmenber of the Select Commttee on Legislative
Ethics. He thanked M. Turner and asked him to put hinself on
t he record.

1: 49: 22 PM

GARY J. TURNER, Appointee to the Select Commttee on Legislative
Et hics, said he lives in Soldotna and is the director of Kena
Peni nsul a Coll ege. He explained that he is interested in serving
on the coommittee and that he has a strong sense of ethics. Wen
he taught at the Air Force Acadeny the inportance of a strong
et hi cal foundation becane very evident. Legislative ethics is of
particular interest and his past experience and background w ||
serve the legislature well in light of the challenges it
currently faces.

CHAI R FRENCH asked how | ong he has been on the conmttee.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 5- January 31, 2007



MR. TURNER replied he has been a nenber since Novenber 2006.
CHAI R FRENCH asked if he is a nmenber of a political party.
MR. TURNER said he is a registered Republican.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked him to provide further information on
teaching ethics and ethical behavior at the mlitary acadeny.

MR. TURNER briefly outlined the Air Force code of conduct that
all acadeny cadets are required to abide by and suggested that
others would do well to enulate that code. He relayed that it
can be very difficult for a student to report a friend who was
cheating to the honor commttee.

CHAI R FRENCH opened public testinony.

1:52:03 PM
THERESA OBERVEYER opened her coments with the statenment that
she is still motivated by a letter of reference she received

from Chief Justice Rabinowitz in 1981. She established that she
does not know M. Turner but she was disturbed by what she heard
him say during the House Judiciary Comrittee hearing. She
enphasi zed that there is a trenendous distinction between civi
law that is based on due process and mlitary law that is based
on conmand aut hority.

M5. OBERMEYER described civil lawsuits she has filed and several
not-for-publication <court rulings and suggested that the
particulars can be located by going to the state’s court website
and entering the case nanes correctly. She advised that she has
a website outlining her views on issues that face the state.

1:58: 37 PM
CHAIR FRENCH asked if the commttee had questions for M.
Tur ner.

SENATOR HUGA NS said he doesn't know the difference between
mlitary and civil law, but it doesn’'t matter in this instance.
M. Turner should in no way be ashaned of or concerned about his
mlitary background. He observed that sone of us may well
benefit fromhis experience in the area of ethics.

CHAI R FRENCH added that he served with M. Turner for severa
meetings and he is remarkably wel|l prepared and thoughtful.

1: 59: 55 PM

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 6- January 31, 2007



SENATOR McGUI RE nmade a notion to advance from commttee the nane
Gary J. Turner as appointee to the Select Comittee on
Legislative Ethics to the full body for consideration.

CHAI R FRENCH announced that forwarding the nane does not reflect
the intent by any nenber to vote for or against the individual
during any further sessions. There being no objection, the
confirmation was advanced from the Senate Judiciary Standing
Comm ttee.

At ease from 2:00:27 PMto 2:01:37 PM

SB  5-FAI LURE TO REPORT CRI MES

2:01: 41 PM

CHAI R FRENCH announced the consideration of SB 5 and said the
first order of business is to adopt the commttee substitute
(CS), Version \M

SENATOR HUGE NS noved CSSB 5, |abeled 25-LS0097\M as the
wor ki ng docunent. There was no obj ecti on.

CHAI R FRENCH noted the proposed amendnents that were discussed
during the previous hearing.

SENATOR McGUI RE made a notion to adopt Anendnment 1, |abel ed 25-
LS0097\ M 2.

Amendment 1

Page 2, line 11:

Delete "in a tinmely manner™

Insert "as soon as reasonably practicable [IN A
TI MELY MANNER] "

CHAI R FRENCH found no objection and announced that Anendnent 1
was adopt ed.

2:04: 40 PM
SENATOR McGUI RE made a notion to adopt Amendnent 2, |abeled 25-
LSO0097\ M 1.

Amendnment 2

Page 1, line 7, followng "victin:

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -7- January 31, 2007



Insert "or a coconspirator or acconplice of
anot her person who commits the crine listed in (1)(A
- (D) of this subsection"

CHAI R FRENCH obj ected for di scussion purposes.

SENATOR MGU RE explained that it addresses a concern the
Department of Law (DOL) expressed about forcing a person to
self-incrimnate. She enphasized that the right to not self-
incrimnate supersedes any statutory right regardl ess, but the
amendnent would clarify that a coconspirator or acconplice to an
underlying crinme would not be expected to report the crine.

CHAIR FRENCH restated that in no case would soneone who is
involved in the comrmission of a crime ever be charged wth
failure to report. He or she wowuld be charged wth the
underlying crinme or not charged at all.

SENATOR McGUI RE sai d yes.

2:06: 28 PM

SENATOR THERRI AULT recalled a national case involving a young
girl who was lured into a casino bathroom A friend of the
perpetrator had know edge of the incident. He asked if there is
a bright line at the point where a person becones an acconplice
or coconspirator

SENATOR McGQUI RE said the statutes defining an acconplice or

coconspirator are clear. |In fact, forner Senator Pearce’s
original msprision law [failure to report a felony] was
designed to respond to that case. The target of this bill is the

person who did not conspire or participate in the crime, but has
knowl edge of the crime and could possibly save the victins
life.

2:07:48 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI posed a situation whereby a w tness hel ped
the attacker escape instead of reporting the crinme. This
provi sion would exenpt that bad act. He suggested |eaving well
enough al one since there is a constitutional protection against
self-incrimnation.

SENATOR McGUIRE said, first, a person who takes the step to
become an acconplice would be charged with the nore serious
crime. The intention here is to sinply get innocent bystanders
i nvol ved. Second, the concern DOL expressed has sonme founding.
Wen the Exxon Valdez fetched up on Bligh Reef, Captain

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 8- January 31, 2007



Hazel wood reported the incident. A creative defense |awer
notioned to strike that call from evidence. The argunent was
that reporting was mandatory wunder spill Jlaws so he was
essentially forced to self-incrimnate. The point of this
amendnent is to nake sure that a defense attorney can’'t use that
creative argunent to get the charge thrown out.

SENATOR THERRI AULT nentioned the issue of charge stacking and
cutting a deal with prosecutors.

CHAIR FRENCH said that relates to the nmenmo from DOL. The
commttee could discuss the issue now or hold it for subsequent
di scussi on.

2:13: 59 PM
SENATOR McGUI RE wi t hdr ew Anendnent 2.

CHAI R FRENCH announced that w thout objection, Anmendnent 2 is
wi t hdr awn.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked or if there is a requirenent to give
your name when reporting a crime or could a report be anonynous.

CHAIR FRENCH solicited a response. Finding none he said that
guestion woul d be given consideration.

CHAIR FRENCH made a notion to adopt Amendnment 3, |abeled 25-
LS0097\C. 1 and objected for discussion purposes.

Amendnent 3

Page 2, line 12 [15]:
Del ete "class A m sdeneanor”
I nsert new material to read:
(1) class C felony if the crine not
reported is an uncl assified fel ony; or
(2) class A msdeneanor if the crine not
reported is other than an unclassified felony."

CHAIR FRENCH noted that the anendnent pertains to an earlier
version of the bill. Thus it requires anendnent.

CHAI R FRENCH made a notion to anend Amendnent 3 as foll ows:
On line 2 delete “class A m sdeneanor” and insert “a

class C felony”. [Reference is to page 2, line 15 of
Version M ]

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -9- January 31, 2007



CHAIR FRENCH explained that failure to report an unclassified
felony would be a class C felony. That includes: nurder in the
first degree, nmurder in the second degree, sexual assault in the
first degree, sex abuse of a mnor in the first degree, and
ki dnapping. It would be a msdeneanor to not report |esser
crimes such as: sex assault, sex abuse, and assault causing
serious physical injury. Thus it is nore serious not to report a
horrific nmurder than to not report what nmay be a bar fight,
whi ch is captured by subparagraph (D)

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked for and received clarification. He said
he had no objection.

CHAI R FRENCH r enoved hi s obj ecti on.

2:18:19 PM
SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked what the punishment is for a class C
felony and a class A m sdeneanor.

CHAI R FRENCH rel ayed that the penalty for a class C felony is O
to 5 years in prison and a $50,000 fine. The penalty for a class
A misdeneanor is 0 to 1 year in prison and a $10,000 fine. A
suspended inposition of sentence (SIS) could pertain to either
crinme. Upon conpletion of sone probationary ternms, a judge could
suspend the sentence.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked is the crine for not reporting would be
the sanme as the crine itself.

CHAIR FRENCH said no; failure to report an unclassified felony
woul d be a class C fel ony.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked what the penalty is for an unclassified
f el ony.

CHAIR FRENCH said it’s up to 99 years in prison. For nurder 1
the penalty is 20 to 99 years, for nmurder 2 the penalty is 10 to
99 years. He noted that sex assault and sex abuse penalties have
recently been seriously increased.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked what the crime classification is for
mur der .

CHAIR FRENCH said it’'s an unclassified felony. Cass A felony is

the least serious followed by <class B then class C  An
uncl assified felony is the nost serious.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 10- January 31, 2007



2:20: 07 PM

SENATOR THERRI AULT stated no objection to Amendnment 3, but noted
it requires a technical fix. The reference should be to page 2,
line 15.

CHAIR FRENCH said the discrepancy is noted; the reference is
fromthe earlier version

CHAI R FRENCH announced Anmendnent 3, as anended, is adopted
wi t hout obj ection.

2:20:40 PM
SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI nade a notion to adopt Amendnent 4, | abel ed
25-LS0097\ C. 1.

Anendnent 4
Page 2, followng line 12:
Insert a new bill section to read:
"* Sec. 3. AS 11.56.765(b) is anended to read:
(b) In a prosecution under this section, it is
an affirmati ve defense that the defendant
(1) did not report in a tinely nmanner

because the defendant reasonably believed that doing
so would have exposed the defendant or others to a
substantial risk of physical injury; [OR]

(2) acted to stop the comm ssion of the
crime and st opped

(A) the conm ssion of the crine; or

(B) the conpletion of the crime being
attenpted; or

(3) reasonably believed that the crine had
already been reported to a peace officer or |aw
enf or cenent agency. "

Renunber the following bill section accordingly.
CHAI R FRENCH obj ect ed for discussion purposes.
SENATOR W ELECHOWEKI said the anmendnent would add an affirmative

defense for a witness who reasonably believes that the crine has
al ready been reported to authorities.

SENATOR MG@QU RE said she would rather err on the side of

mul tiple reporting. Anyone could use this defense so it would
take the teeth out of the bill. For exanple the three nen that

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -11- January 31, 2007



witnessed the Kiva Friedman crinme testified to the fact that
Jerry McClain told them he would call 911. Another exanple is
the 1962 Kitty GCenovese case in Boston. She was outside her
apartnent and thirty sone people wtnessed her being stabbed
over 35 tines. One purpose of the bill is to increase civic
responsibility. That affirmative defense sets the threshold so
| ow that anyone could throw out a good defense for that, she
sai d.

2:23:43 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI acknow edged that the points are good and
that they are well taken. He brought the issue up for discussion
because sonmeone who wi tnesses a car accident and doesn’t call in
woul d potentially go to jail.

CHAI R FRENCH comrented on the Kitty Genovese and Kiva Friednman
exanples. In the ‘60s it wasn't reasonable to believe that
someone would use a cell phone at the scene of a crine.
Reporting was nore difficult because a wtness would have to
take an affirmative step to find a telephone. But in a case |like
Kiva’s he questions whether it is reasonable to expect that a
perpetrator would turn hinself in. A jury mght buy that
defense, but it could probably be convinced ot herw se.

He said Senator Welechowski is on to sonmething because of the
preval ence of cell phones as well as the concern that a 911
center could be overl oaded.

SENATOR HUGGE NS expressed the view that the anendnent woul d take
the teeth out of the bill.

2.26:14 PM
SENATOR THERRI AULT said he would be voting no on the anendnent.
He is confortable relying on prosecutorial discretion.

2:26: 38 PM
SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI wi t hdr ew Anendment 4.

CHAIR FRENCH announced that w thout objection, Amendnent 4 is
wi t hdr awn.

2:27:04 PM

SENATOR THERRI AULT reported that his staff contacted Senator
MGQuire's staff to relay his long-standing desire to keep
statutes as clean as possible. He noted that the inpact of
Section 1 is to name a section of statute in the statutes. Over

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -12- January 31, 2007



the years he has tried to avoid doing that because it’s
difficult to know where to draw the |ine.

SENATOR THERRI AULT noved Anendnent 5 to del ete Section 1.

2:28:50 PM

SENATOR McGUI RE objected. She said the precedential value of the
argunent is well taken, but on the other hand namng a law as a
result of sonme egregi ous event ensures that the story is retold.
Keeping Kiva’'s Law in the bill rem nds people of the story and
illustrates the need for the | aw

2:30: 28 PM

SENATOR HUGGE NS stated support for the anendnent and noted that
Senator Therriault has been very consistent in the effort to
keep nanes out of statute.

CHAI R FRENCH expressed the view that this will forever be known
as Kiva’s Lawwith or without the line in statute

A roll call was taken on Anendnent 5. Senator Therriault,
Senator Huggins and Chair French voted in favor and Senator
McGQuire and Senator Welechowski voted against; therefore,
Amendnent 5 carri ed.

2:31:46 PM

CHAIR FRENCH directed attention to a nenorandum from Chief
Assi stant Attorney Ceneral, Rick Svobodny. It consists of three
pages of legal argunent with an attached nenorandum to M.
Svobodny thru Doug Kossler fromBlair Christensen.

He said it should cone as no surprise that the Department of Law
has a great nunber of concerns about this bill. In the second
menor andum  Ms. Christensen cites Ohio . Wardl ow [ 484,
N. E. 2d246(Chi o App. 1985]. Chair French said that case junped
out at him because that fact pattern is seen very frequently in
crimnal |aw

The fact pattern is a 13-year-old girl who is repeatedly raped
by her nother's boyfriend. In the course of uncovering the
crinme, the nother was charged with failure to report and child
endangernent. The State of Chio Court of Appeals tossed one of
the convictions because of the Fifth Anmendnent right against
sel f-incrimnation.

CHAI R FRENCH announced his intention to carry the bill over to
allowtinme to review the nenorandum and the facts of the case.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 13- January 31, 2007



SENATOR W ELECHOASKI noted that M. Christensen’s nmenorandum
al so says that “if the statute does not require the reporter to
give their nane and sone other pertinent information, then the
statute would be difficult to enforce.”. He said he raised that
guestion earlier and the commttee mght want to give that nore
t hought .

CHAI R FRENCH asked M. Svobodny and Comm ssioner Mnegan if they
woul d i ke to present their views.

2:34: 40 PM

RI CHARD SVOBODNY, Chief Attorney GCeneral, Crimnal Division,
Department of Law, noted that the packets also contain an enuil
from Ms. Christensen to M. Carpeneti sunmarizing Kiva' s case
fromthe prosecutor’s perspective.

He recapped that the three witnesses did not report the crine,
but if SB 5 had been in effect prosecution would have been
substantially nore difficult. By virtue of not reporting the
crine the three wtnesses would have commtted a C felony
of fense and that would give them a Fifth Amendnent right not to
testify in the underlying rmurder trial. Sinply admtting to the
judge that they were present at the scene of the crinme is a link
in the chain that could result in a conviction.

There are statutory provisions for granting immnity but there
are associ ated problens. To begin with the witness has probably
been advised not to talk to the police, so the state really
doesn’t know what the witness wll testify to at trial. |If
immunity is granted, the defense has two built-in argunents to
weaken the wtness's credibility. On cross examnation the
defense will argue that the witness struck a deal with the state
and got immnity. In Alaska imunity is transactional neaning
that the witness has inmmunity from anything he or she says about
the underlying case and any other case. In closing argunment the
defense further challenges the witness’s credibility by pointing
out that the state went through the extraordinary process of
granting immunity. He summarized that this will limt the people
who are willing to talk to the police and it will put the state
at a tactical disadvantage at trial.

MR. SVOBODNY said Hazelwood v. State is an exanple of immunity
for an abettor, a coconspirator, or a perpetrator who reports an
offense. A federal statute required Captain Hazel wod to report
that the Exxon Valdez was aground and |eaking oil. The statute
he was relying on had a provision that said he would receive

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -14- January 31, 2007



use, derivative use imunity — anything he said or anything that
flowed fromhis statenment could not be used.

Capt ai n Hazel wood argued that hi s cal | triggered the
investigation of the spill and so his <call and all the
information found after the call should not be used against him
at trial. Ina 3 to O ruling the Alaska Court of Appeals agreed.
Therefore, the only thing the state could present was sonething
that happened before he nmade the call saying that the Exxon
Val dez was agr ound.

In a 3 to 1 decision the Alaska Supreme Court overturned the
Al aska Court of Appeals decision saying that Captain Hazel wood’s
statenment could not be wused, but that the spill wuld have
i nevitably been discovered independent of the call. Thus the
state could nove forward in the prosecution of the case. He
relayed that two teans of |awers worked on the case. The first
team worked on the trial while the second worked to ensure that
information that was directly related to Captain Hazel wod s
statenment was never transmitted to the first team

M. Svobodny reiterated that the fact that Alaska has
transactional imunity is part of DOL’s underlying concern with
SB 5.

2:42: 37 PM

CHAIR FRENCH noted that this law that pertains to children has
been on the books for a nunber of years. At the heart of the
matter is a famly nmenber, friend or neighbor who is aware of an
abuse and doesn’t make a report until they hear that a crimna
case is evolving. He suggested that the highlighted concern has
pl ayed out nunerous tinmes in the past few years but it doesn't
appear to have been a problem He asked if it’s correct that it
has not been a problemand if so, why hasn’t it been a problem

MR. SVOBODNY replied it hasn’'t been a problem because no one has
been prosecuted under that statute.

CHAIR FRENCH questioned why the immunity issue hasn’t been
identified as a continuing problem to getting testinony from a
fam |y menber, nei ghbor or other witness.

MR. SVOBODNY relayed that he has been the Attorney GCeneral’s
i muni ty designee for seven nonths and those inmunity decisions
have been anong the nost difficult he has nade in 30 years as a
prosecutor. They are best judgnment decisions based on the judge
telling him that the wtness my have a Fifth Anmendnent

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 15- January 31, 2007



privilege and the crinme for which there may be a privilege is a
m sdeneanor, a felony, or a serious felony. If the judge says
the crime is a serious felony, | mght think the witness is the
perpetrator, he said.

CHAIR FRENCH asked him to explain the difference between a
felony and a serious felony.

MR, SVOBCDNY said under the immunity statute the nobst serious
are the unclassified felony offenses. Cass A felony offenses
m ght be included, but B felonies are not. An exanple of a B
felony is perjury under oath.

SENATOR MGUI RE said the argunment is waning. If there were to be
a problem then the sane argunent would apply as the material
witness law, which is a statutory construct that has played out
successfully in other states. The notion is that sonmeone who has
cormitted a serious crine, or is an acconplice, or a
coconspirator is going to report the crine they conmtted so
that they can get off.

She suggested that it’s not logical to argue that crimnals in
Alaska will begin calling to report the gruesonme details of
their crimes, but if that were to happen perhaps it’s not a bad
goal .

SENATOR McGUI RE pressed M. Svobodny to say why having this |aw
on the books would be potentially dangerous if the nandatory
reporting requirenment for serious crines against children hasn't
been used in the |last six years.

MR. SVOBODNY said the concern relates to the fact that a person
who didn't report a nurder in a tinely manner is guilty of a C
felony offense. Now they have a Fifth Amendnent right not to
testify at trial. He noted that although prosecutors mght tel
a witness not to worry about being charged with a felony for not
reporting, a defense attorney would tell a client not to talk to
t he poli ce.

CHAIR FRENCH stated that his advice would be “tough |uck fess
up,” which is why he is not in the defense bar.

SENATOR McGUI RE argued that granting imunity would at | east get
the witness to the table. Al so, she speculated that there was
sone ability to threaten the three witnesses in the Kiva case to
force them to testify. Wth or wthout this law there wll
al ways be a carrot and a stick, she said.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 16- January 31, 2007



MR. SVOBODNY reiterated that under SB 5 a wi tness who doesn’t
report would have a Fifth Amendnent right not to testify at
trial and he or she probably won’t talk to the police.

SENATOR McGUI RE asked if the three witnesses [to Kiva's torture
and abuse] were threatened with sone type of crime to force them
to testify.

2:52:44 PM
MR. SVOBODNY said he did not have first-hand know edge, but the
emai | strongly suggests that there was no threat.

SENATOR McGUIRE said having this law on the books could open a
conversation about avoiding prosecution for a msdeneanor or
felony in exchange for stepping up to testify and help prove a
charge of torture and brutal nurder

MR. SVOBCDNY responded that the problem is that the prosecutor
doesn’t know what a witness will say.

CHAIR FRENCH said the problem is that the state can grant
immunity for what it believes is just the failure to report, but
Al aska courts interpret that to be an open grant of immunity. It
woul d apply to anything that the wi tness confessions to while on
the stand. He said it’s a prosecutor’s nightnare and he could
appreciate the strain M. Svobodny is under when he makes those
deci si ons.

2:54: 34 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked if anyone has wused the current
statute to refuse to give information on the grounds that it may
be self-incrimnating.

MR. SVOBODNY replied not under the statute that pertains to
children. He qualified that it nay be because prosecutors
haven’t enlightened the less cul pable bystanders to the fact
that consulting an attorney would be a good i dea.

2:56: 05 PM

SENATOR HUGGE NS comented that this is pushing him further
outside his confort zone, but he does realize that societal
norns are changi ng.

MR, SVOBODNY described the material witness law and said it's
not the same thing as SB 5.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -17- January 31, 2007



SENATOR THERRI AULT brought up the issue of establishing an age
limt regarding the duty to report.

SENATOR McGUI RE said the general rule is the age of majority.

SENATOR MGU RE encouraged M. Svobodny to rethink the
simlarity between the material witness |law and SB 5. She | ooks
forward to constructive suggestions from M. Svobodny; so far
he’s just shot holes in the bill. She referenced the issue of
changing norns and confort levels and said all changes aren’'t
necessarily right. Statutes reflect the noral fabric of a
community and |awmkers have a responsibility to think about
that, she said. Finally, she asked if the Departnment of Law
would i ke to repeal the current |aw pertaining to children.

MR. SVOBCDNY rel ayed that footnotes 2 and 4 from his menorandum
have statutory references to hindering prosecution, imunity and
making a false report all of which may reach the sane goal as
this bill. Yes, he said, the DOL would like the current law to
be repealed. “We’d probably be better off without it.”

CHAIR FRENCH held SB 5 in comm ttee.

There being no further business to come before the commttee
Chair French adjourned the neeting at 3:01:00 PM

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 18- January 31, 2007



